
Meeting papers

Constitution Committee

Monday 10 October 2016 at 3.00 pm

Meeting Room 1&2 - Shire Hall, Gloucester





Date Published:30 September 2016     

Constitution Committee

Monday 10 October 2016 at 3.00 pm

Meeting Room 1&2 - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

To note any apologies for absence. 

Laura Gibbard

2  ELECTION OF CHAIRPERSON 

To elect a Chairperson for the Civic Year (2016/17).

Laura Gibbard

3  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 30th March 2016. 

Laura Gibbard

4  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

To answer any written public questions about matters which are 
within the powers and duties of the Committee.  The closing 
date/time for receipt of questions is 10.00am on Monday 3rd 
October 2016.  To answer any oral question(s) put by members of 
the public with the consent of the Chairperson.

Depending on the nature of the questions asked it may not be 
possible to provide a comprehensive answer at the meeting, in 
which case a written answer will be supplied as soon as reasonably 
possible after the meeting.

Laura Gibbard

5  MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 

To answer any written members’ questions.  The closing date/time 
for the receipt of questions is 10.00am on Monday 3rd October 

Laura Gibbard



    

2016. 

6  MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES SCHEME (Pages 5 - 22)

To receive a report on the Members’ Allowances Scheme.

Simon Harper

7  HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD - PROPOSED CHANGES TO 
TERMS OF REFERENCE (Pages 23 - 28)

To consider the proposed changes to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board Terms of Reference.

Sarah Scott

8  MONITORING OFFICER CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION (Pages 
29 - 52)

To consider the attached reports.

Jane Burns

Membership –  Cllr Mark Hawthorne MBE, Cllr Jeremy Hilton, Cllr Nigel Moor, 
Cllr Brian Oosthuysen, Cllr Klara Sudbury, Cllr Ray Theodoulou, Cllr Lesley Williams MBE, 
Cllr Roger Wilson and Cllr Will Windsor-Clive 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Gibbard, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.gibbard@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
Members are required to sign the attendance list.

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:laura.gibbard@gloucestershire.gov.uk


 

- 1 - 

 

CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES of the meeting of the Constitution Committee held on Wednesday 30 
March 2016 commencing at 2.00 pm at the Members' Room - Shire Hall, Gloucester. 

 
 

PRESENT 
MEMBERSHIP: 

 

 Cllr Colin Guyton 
Cllr Mark Hawthorne 
Cllr Jeremy Hilton 
Cllr Nigel Moor 
 

Cllr Klara Sudbury 
Cllr Ray Theodoulou 
Cllr Lesley Williams 
Cllr Will Windsor-Clive 
 

Apologies: Cllr Brian Oosthuysen 
 

Officers: Jane Burns, Director of Strategy and Challenge and Monitoring 
Officer 
Carrie Denness, Principal Lawyer 
Paul Blacker, Head of Financial Management 
Simon Harper, Head of Democratic Services 
Laura Gibbard, Democratic Services Adviser 

 
8. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
8.1  Apologies were received from Cllr Brian Oosthuysen. 

 
8.2   There were no substitutions at this meeting. 

 
9. MINUTES  

 
The minutes of the previous meeting of 8 January 2016 were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

10. PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 
No public questions were received. 
 

11. MEMBERS' QUESTIONS  
 
No questions from members were received. 
 

12. MOTION 763 - REFERRED FROM COUNTY COUNCIL 2 DECEMBER 2015  
 

12.1  Jane Burns, Director of Strategy and Challenge and Monitoring Officer, presented 
the joint report of the Monitoring Officer and Chief Financial Officer on comparative 
information relating to the transfers of funding. 
 

12.2 The report had been produced following a request by the Committee at its meeting 
on 8 January 2016 for an exercise to be undertaken comparing the procedures 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 2 - 
 

followed by other councils relating to the transfer of funds from one budget area to 
another, including transfers to and from reserves. 
 

12.3  The Committee was informed that the work undertaken was time-consuming. All 
county councils in England had been contacted and research was undertaken 
where necessary through each council’s website. Information had been received 
from 20 county councils, including Gloucestershire. 
 

12.4 It was noted that, at headline level, the responses indicated the majority of county 
councils had processes similar to Gloucestershire County Council. Examples could 
be found of only four county councils where there were specific requirements for 
movement and transfer of budget decisions to be made by full council.  
 

12.5  Cllr Jeremy Hilton expressed his concern that the Cabinet’s decision on 11 
November 2015 to approve a £17 million one-off financial contribution to the 
residual waste project, funded from revenue reserves, involved the transfer of a 
significant sum of money that was outside of the planned budget. He proposed that 
the additional transfer of more than £5 million to a project should be approved by 
full Council.  
 

12.6  Several members commented that it was reasonable for the executive to have 
responsibility for the movement and transfer of budgets, unless policy changes 
were involved. The example raised by Cllr Hilton had been subject to the Call-in 
Procedure.  
 

12.7  After being put to a vote, it was agreed by the majority of the Committee that 
Gloucestershire County Council’s current process should be maintained. The 
Committee thanked officers for the report.  

 
12.8  RESOLVED that no further action would be taken regarding the process for 

transfers of funding.  
 

13. CHANGES TO THE EMPLOYEE CODE OF CONDUCT  
 

13.1  Jane Burns informed the Committee that she had committed to reviewing the 
Employee Code of Conduct on a regular basis.  
 

13.2  The main changes to the Code were: 
 

 Expanding the types of engagement covered by the Code to reflect the nature 
of the workforce 

 Updated information on contract management and procurement 

 Clarification on conflicts of interest 

 Clarifications under health and safety issues 

 References to updated documents and guidance 

 Minor typographical changes. 
 

13.3 In response to a query, it was clarified that employees had to declare membership 
of any organisation which was not open to the public, where there was a 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 3 - 
 

commitment of allegiance, and/or which had secrecy about rules, membership or 
conduct. 
 

13.4  In reference to paragraph 81 of the Code, clarification was requested by the 
Committee on the type of civil offences managers would need to be notified of. It 
was also requested that guidance be issued to staff regarding this. 

 
Action: Jane Burns  
 

13.5  RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE COUNCIL that the revised Employee 
Code of Conduct be approved and adopted.  
 

14. MONITORING OFFICER CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION  
 

14.1  Jane Burns explained that Part 3, Section 5, Scheme of Delegation (‘Scheme of 
Delegation’) had been amended to reflect the change to delegated powers following 
the retirement of the Director of People Services.  
 

14.2  RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND TO THE COUNCIL to ratify the changes to the 
Constitution by the Monitoring Officer under delegated powers regarding: 
 

 Part 3 of the Constitution, (Responsibility for Functions), Section 3.13 
Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee, and; 

 

 Part 3 of the Constitution, Section 5, Scheme of Delegation (‘Scheme of 
Delegation’). 

 
 
 
 

 
CHAIRMAN 

 
Meeting concluded at 2.25 pm 

 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE 

10 October 2016 

REVISIONS TO THE MEMBERS ALLOWANCES SCHEME 

1 Introduction 

1.1 As part of the preparations for next year’s County Council election a review has 
been undertaken of the Members’ Allowances Scheme to ensure that all the 
provisions remain relevant.   

1.2 There are a number of sections including those relating to co-optee’s 
allowances, financial loss allowance, reimbursing expenses for non-county 
councillors and outside bodies that are either no longer relevant or out-of-date.   

1.3 The opportunity has also been taken to include specific allowances for the 
members of the Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP).  

1.4 Please note that the allowances currently paid to elected members are not 
affected by this report. 

2 Revisions 

2.1 The revised scheme is attached at Appendix A.  In addition to the general 
tidying-up of the scheme, the proposed allowances for the members of the IRP 
are £1,000 for the Chair and £250 for the panel members.  The larger sum for 
the Chair reflects the extra time commitment associated with the role including 
panel meetings and attendance at the member interviews held each year, 
formal Council meetings and Group Leaders.   

2.2 Group Leaders have indicated support for payments at this level.  Research 
among other local authorities has shown that allowances are paid to IRP 
members elsewhere. 

2.3 For comparison, the current scheme in the Council Constitution is included at 
Appendix B with tracked changes. 

3 Recommendation 

To recommend that the Council adopts the revisions to the Members’ 
Allowances Scheme in Appendix A and includes them in the Constitution. 

Simon Harper 
Head of Democratic Services 
Tel 01452 324202 
Email simon.harper@gloucestershire.gov.uk  

Page 5

Agenda Item 6

mpidgeon
Typewritten Text



Issue No.26 –July 2016 
P a g e  | 217 

3. OTHER ALLOWANCES PAYABLE BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL FOR PERFORMING
APPROVED DUTIES:

[Note 1: Regulation 8 of the Local Authorities (Members' Allowances) (England) 
Regulations 2003 states that payment of travel and subsistence can only 
be made for attendance at meetings within one or more of the following 
categories: 

(a) The attendance at a meeting of the Authority or of any 
committee or sub-committee of the Authority, or of any other 
body to which the Authority makes appointments or 
nominations, or of any committee or sub-committee of such a 
body; 

(b) The attendance at any other meeting, the holding of which is 
authorised by the Authority, or a committee or sub-committee 
of the authority, or a joint committee of the Authority and one 
or more Local Authority within the meaning of Section 270(1) 
of the Local Government Act 1972, or a sub-committee of 
such a joint committee provided that: 

(i) Where the Authority is divided into two or more political 
groups it is a meeting to which Members of at least two 
such groups have been invited; or 

(ii) If the Authority is not so divided, it is a meeting to 
which at least two Members of the Authority have been 
invited; 

(c) The attendance at a meeting of any association of authorities 
of which the Authority is a member; 

(d) The attendance at a meeting of the executive or a meeting of 
any of its committees, where the Authority is operating 
executive arrangements; 

(e) The performance of any duty in pursuance of any Standing 
Order made under Section 135 of the Local Government Act 
1972 requiring a Member or Members to be present while 
tender documents are opened; 

(f) The performance of any duty in connection with the discharge 
of any function of the Authority conferred by or under any 
enactment and empowering or requiring the Authority to 
inspect or authorise the inspection of premises; 

Page 6

mpidgeon_1
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_2
Typewritten Text
Appendix A

mpidgeon_3
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_4
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_5
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_6
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_7
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_8
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_9
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_10
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_11
Typewritten Text



Issue No.26 –July 2016 
P a g e  | 218 

(g) The performance of any duty in connection with arrangements 
made by the Authority for the attendance of pupils at any 
school approved for the purposes of Section 342 (approval of 
non-maintained special schools) of the Education Act 1996; 
and 

(h) The carrying out of any other duty approved by the Authority, 
or the Chief Executive acting under delegated powers, for the 
purpose of, or in connection with, the discharge of the 
functions of the Authority or of any of its committees or sub-
committees.  

Note 2: Members’ homes are regarded as their work base for the purpose of 
claims and a specified number of visits to Shire Hall each year for 
’contact‘ purposes should be regarded as an ’approved duty‘ for the 
purposes of travel claims. Further advice will be issued from time to time 
listing activities for which travel and subsistence may be claimed. 

Note 3: The Council has agreed that a travel allowance may be payable to County 
Councillors on journeys to and from parish and town council meetings 
within their division. This should apply to full town or parish council 
meetings only and the County Councillor should not be a member of that 
particular parish or town council. 

(a) Travelling 

1.1 By Public Transport Services 

The actual fares paid supported by receipts. Members should be 
reimbursed for the actual cost of a rail ticket up to the cost of an open 
standard return. Train tickets can be arranged through Democratic 
Services.  

Actual expenditure (receipts should be provided) incurred on: 

(a) Reservation of seats; 
(b) Porterage of baggage; 
(c) Sleeping accommodation on an overnight journey. 

1.2 Taxi-cabs

Taxi-cab fares (including a reasonable gratuity) may be paid in cases of 
urgency or when no public service is reasonably available.  Receipts 
should be provided. 

1.3 Member's Private Motor Vehicles 

Page 7



Issue No.26 –July 2016 
P a g e  | 219 

The rates of allowance shall be in accordance with the HMRC authorised 
mileage allowance rate. 

1.4 Bicycles

An allowance of 20p per mile (all mileage) is payable on condition the 
bicycle is roadworthy, the rider wears protective headgear, appropriate 
high visibility clothing and has third party insurance. 

1.5 Motor Cycles

24p per mile (all mileage) 

1.6   Hired Cars 

 The rate for travel by a hired motor car vehicle other than a taxi cab shall 
not exceed the rate which would have been applicable had the vehicle 
belonged to the Member who hired it, provided that where the County 
Council so approves the rate may be increased to an amount not 
exceeding the actual cost of hiring. 

1.7   Miscellaneous expenses 

Actual expenditure on tolls, ferries and parking fees 

Where possible, receipts should be obtained 

(b) Subsistence Allowances 

When attending meetings of the Council or of other bodies, for which Members are 
entitled to claim travel and subsistence costs, reasonable subsistence costs will be 
reimbursed (on presentation of receipts) if the meeting started or finished between 
12.30 and 14.30 and no food was provided. 

No subsistence costs will be reimbursed in relation to attendance at meetings within 
the Shire Hall complex. 

(c) Carers’ Allowance 

A Member may claim a carer's allowance where he or she has incurred expenditure on 
engaging a carer for a dependant in order to attend a ‘designated’ meeting and/or carry 
out approved duties, subject to the following: 

 For an allowance to be payable the dependant being cared for needs to 
be in one of the following groups: 

 A child under 14 years of age; 
 An elderly person;
 A person with a physical or mental disability; 
 A person with a learning disability;  

Page 8



Issue No.26 –July 2016 
P a g e  | 220 

 and live with the Member as part of the Members family and is unable to 
be left unsupervised. 

  A carer (i.e., the person being paid to act as carer while the Member is 
carrying out his or her County Council duties) is defined as someone who 
does not normally live with the Member as part of the Members family and 
is not part of the extended family. 

 Subject to the above, Carers Allowance claims can be made for the actual 
cost of providing dependent care, with no maximum amount, subject to 
appropriate auditing procedures being carried out. 

 The claim should be included on the standard County Councillors claim 
form, with a receipt from the carer attached (see Section 4 below). 

The Inland Revenue view the payment of carers’ costs as a taxable 
benefit, so any payments will be subject to tax. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION (LGA)  

County Councillors who are appointed to serve on the LGA or any of its Committees can claim 
for mileage/subsistence/fares for attending meetings of those forums.  

4. HOW DO I CLAIM?

There is no need to claim basic and special responsibility allowances; these will be
paid automatically each month.

Claims for travelling and subsistence expenses should be claimed monthly with all
receipts attached.  There is a three month time limit on expense claims being
presented, with any claims submitted outside of that time limit, not being paid unless
agreed by the Chief Executive that the delay was for good reason.

Claim forms in respect of the allowances payable under Section 3 above are available
from Democratic Services..

Claims should be submitted promptly after the end of each month otherwise payment
may be delayed. Information on payroll deadlines is available from Democratic
Services.

(a) RECOVERY OF VAT ON SOME COUNTY COUNCILLORS’ EXPENSES 

HM Revenue & Customs have advised us that the VAT element of some types of 
County Councillors’ expenses can now be recovered by the County Council. VAT can 
be reclaimed where the full cost of expenses are being reimbursed. 

The following is a list of the most likely types of expenses where VAT could be 
reclaimed: 

Page 9



Issue No.26 –July 2016 
P a g e  | 221 

 Hotel accommodation and sundries; 
 Full cost of meals, e.g. on trains; 
 Car parking and tolls; 
 Taxi fares (if driver is VAT registered). 

To enable the County Council to recover the VAT, please obtain a VAT receipt/invoice, 
either made out to GCC or in your name and attach it to your monthly expenses claim 
form.  

(b) INCOME TAX 

At the end of the tax year, the Director: Strategic Finance has to notify the Inspector of 
Taxes of the amounts paid during the tax year and a form P60 will be issued to each 
Member showing details of the information given to the Inspector.  When a Member 
ceases to hold office, a form P45 is issued to the Member, a copy of which is sent to 
the Inspector. 

As part of the Self Assessment arrangements for income tax the Inland Revenue do 
expect individuals to keep records of pay/allowances received and receipts for 
expenses, which should be obtained wherever possible.  

(c) NATIONAL INSURANCE CONTRIBUTIONS 

1. Irrespective of any involvement in other employment or office, contributions will be
payable at the appropriate current rate.

2. Contributions are to be calculated by reference to the total gross earnings used for tax
purposes paid in each pay period, irrespective of the period in which they are earned or
relate.  The pay period for this purpose will be one calendar month.

4. Members that are over State Pension age, currently 60 for women and 65 for men, do
not have to pay employee’s contributions. In order for the County Council not to deduct
National Insurance, from the Members Allowance, the Member must provide a
Certificate of Age Exception. This certificate can be obtained by applying to the
National Insurance Contributions Office, a department of HM Revenue & Customs.

5. At the end of the tax year the Director: Strategic Finance has to notify HM Revenue &
Customs of the amounts of National Insurance deducted during the year. This will be
reported along with the income tax deducted (see 4b above). It will also be included on
form P60, with the deductions of tax that will be issued to each Member.

(d) SOCIAL SECURITY BENEFITS

H M Revenue & Customs will regard "Member allowances" as a gain from employment.
It is important, therefore, that a Member in receipt of any State Benefits (e.g. Job
Seekers Allowance or Disability Working Allowance) should inform the payer of the
benefits irrespective of whether or not he or she claims the allowances payable by the
County Council.

Page 10



Issue No.26 –July 2016 
P a g e  | 222 

5. RENUNCIATION AND WITHHOLDING ALLOWANCES

5.1 A Member who is a County Councillor may by notice in writing to the Director: Strategic
Finance elect to forego all or any part of his or her entitlement to a basic or special
responsibility allowance.

The election may be for an amount, which the Member can then require to be paid to a
charity (or charities) under the "give as you earn" scheme. There is now no maximum
limit which can be paid to charity.

6. ALLOWANCES FOR NON-ELECTED MEMBERS

Non-elected representatives who are co-opted onto the Council committees may claim
travel subsistence and carers’ allowances in the same way as elected members of the
County Council. This includes but is not restricted to members of the Independent
Remuneration Panel (IRP), the Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel and
Independent Persons (Standards).

In light of the time commitment required of members of the IRP, the following payments
will be made on an annual basis:
Chair of the IRP - £1,000
Members of the IRP - £250

These payments will be reviewed as necessary to ensure that they continue to reflect
the demands of the role.

7. FURTHER INFORMATION

Please contact Democratic Services at Shire Hall.

Page 11



Issue No.26 –July 2016
P a g e  | 217

3. OTHER ALLOWANCES PAYABLE BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL FOR PERFORMING 
APPROVED DUTIES: 

[Note 1: Regulation 8 of the Local Authorities (Members' Allowances) (England)
Regulations 2003 states that payment of travel and subsistence can only
be made for attendance at meetings within one or more of the following
categories:

(a) The attendance at a meeting of the Authority or of any
committee or sub-committee of the Authority, or of any other
body to which the Authority makes appointments or
nominations, or of any committee or sub-committee of such a
body;

(b) The attendance at any other meeting, the holding of which is
authorised by the Authority, or a committee or sub-committee
of the authority, or a joint committee of the Authority and one
or more Local Authority within the meaning of Section 270(1)
of the Local Government Act 1972, or a sub-committee of
such a joint committee provided that:

(i) Where the Authority is divided into two or more political
groups it is a meeting to which Members of at least two
such groups have been invited; or

(ii) If the Authority is not so divided, it is a meeting to
which at least two Members of the Authority have been
invited;

(c) The attendance at a meeting of any association of authorities
of which the Authority is a member;

(d) The attendance at a meeting of the executive or a meeting of
any of its committees, where the Authority is operating
executive arrangements;

(e) The performance of any duty in pursuance of any Standing
Order made under Section 135 of the Local Government Act
1972 requiring a Member or Members to be present while
tender documents are opened;

(f) The performance of any duty in connection with the discharge
of any function of the Authority conferred by or under any
enactment and empowering or requiring the Authority to
inspect or authorize the inspection of premises;

Page 12

mpidgeon_12
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_13
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_14
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_15
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_16
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_17
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_18
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_19
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_20
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_21
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_22
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_23
Typewritten Text

mpidgeon_24
Typewritten Text
Appendix B

mpidgeon_25
Typewritten Text



Issue No.26 –July 2016
P a g e  | 218

(g) The performance of any duty in connection with arrangements
made by the Authority for the attendance of pupils at any
school approved for the purposes of Section 342 (approval of
non-maintained special schools) of the Education Act 1996;
and

(h) The carrying out of any other duty approved by the Authority,
or the Chief Executive acting under delegated powers any
duty of a class so approved, for the purpose of, or in
connection with, the discharge of the functions of the Authority
or of any of its committees or sub-committees.

Note 2: Members’ homes are regarded as their work base for the purpose of 
claims and a specified number of visits to Shire Hall each year for
“contact” purposes should be regarded as an “approved duty” for the
purposes of travel claims. Further advice will be issued from time to time
listing activities for which travel and subsistence may be claimed.

Note 3: County Council has resolved that a travel allowance may be payable to
County Councillors on journeys to and from parish and town council
meetings within their division with effect from 19th June 2013. This should 
apply to full town or parish council meetings only and the County
Councillor should not be a member of that particular parish or town
council.

(a) Travelling 

1.1 By Public Transport Services 

The actual fares paid supported by receipts. Members should be
reimbursed for the actual cost of a rail ticket up to the cost of an open
standard return. Train tickets can be arranged through Democratic
Services (Tel: (01452) 426946/425230).

Actual expenditure (receipts should be provided) incurred on:

(a) Reservation of seats;
(b) Porterage of baggage;
(c) Sleeping accommodation on an overnight journey.

1.2 Taxi-cabs 

Taxi-cab fares (including a reasonable gratuity) may be paid in cases of
urgency or when no public service is reasonably available.  Receipts
should be provided.

1.3 Member's Private Motor Vehicles 

The rates of allowance shall be in accordance with the HMRC authorised
mileage allowance rate.

Page 13



Issue No.26 –July 2016
P a g e  | 219

1.4 Bicycles 

An allowance of 20p per mile (all mileage) is payable on condition the
bicycle is roadworthy, the rider wears protective headgear, appropriate
high visibility clothing and has third party insurance. 

1.5 Motor Cycles 

24p per mile (all mileage)

1.6 Hired Cars 

The rate for travel by a hired motor car vehicle other than a taxi cab shall
not exceed the rate which would have been applicable had the vehicle
belonged to the Member who hired it, provided that where the County
Council so approves the rate may be increased to an amount not
exceeding the actual cost of hiring.

1.7 Miscellaneous expenses 

Actual expenditure on tolls, ferries and parking fees

Where possible, receipts should be obtained

(b) Subsistence Allowances 

When attending meetings of the Council or of other bodies, for which Members are
entitled to claim travel and subsistence costs, reasonable subsistence costs will be
reimbursed (on presentation of receipts) if the meeting started or finished between
12.30 and 14.30 and no food was provided. 

No subsistence costs will be reimbursed in relation to attendance at meetings within
the Shire Hall complex.

(c) Carers’ Allowance 

A Member may claim a carer's allowance where he or she has incurred expenditure on
engaging a carer for a dependant in order to attend a ‘designated’ meeting and/or carry 
out approved duties, subject to the following:

 For an allowance to be payable the dependant being cared for needs to
be in one of the following groups:

 A child under 14 years of age;
 An elderly person;
 A person with a physical or mental disability;
 A person with a learning disability;

Page 14



Issue No.26 –July 2016
P a g e  | 220

and live with the Member as part of the Members family and is unable to
be left unsupervised.

 A carer (i.e., the person being paid to act as carer while the Member is
carrying out his or her County Council duties) is defined as someone who
does not normally live with the Member as part of the Members family and
is not part of the extended family.

 Subject to the above, Carers Allowance claims can be made for the actual
cost of providing dependent care, with no maximum amount, subject to
appropriate auditing procedures being carried out.

 The claim should be included on the standard County Councillors claim
form, with a receipt from the carer attached (see Section 4 below).

The Inland Revenue view the payment of carers’ costs as a taxable
benefit, so any payments will be subject to tax.

(d) Co-Optees’ Allowances 

The co-optees’ allowance is £90 per day and £45.00 for a meeting under four hours 
duration.  The maximum annual allowance is based on 12 meetings per annum.  Co-
optees can claim on the basis of actual requirement of their particular Committee up to 
its maximum. 

Ad-hoc allowances for special circumstances are not paid to Councillors or co-optees 
whose workload is greater than normal over either a short or long period. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSOCIATION (LGA) 

County Councillors who are appointed to serve on the LGA or any of its Committees can claim
for mileage/subsistence/fares for attending meetings of those forums.

4. HOW DO I CLAIM? 

There is no need to claim basic and special responsibility allowances; these will be
paid automatically each month.

Claims for travelling and subsistence expenses should be claimed made monthly with
all receipts attached.  There is a three month time limit on expense claims being
presented, with any claims submitted outside of that time limit, not being paid unless
agreed by the Chief Executive that the delay was for good reason. 

Claim forms in respect of the allowances payable under Section 3 above are available
from either Payments and Income Section (01452) 425909 or Democratic Services
(01452) 425479.

Claims should be submitted promptly after the end of each month otherwise payment
may be delayed.  Information on payroll deadlines is available from Democratic
Services. If the completed form is returned to the Payments and Income Section by the
7th of the month, payment will be made on the 30th or the last working day of the month
(whichever is the earlier).  This applies to all months of the year including December.  If

Page 15



Issue No.26 –July 2016
P a g e  | 221

returned later, then payment will not be made until the last working day of the following
month.  Members are requested to submit their claims monthly.

Claims for the reimbursement of expenses incurred by non-
County Councillors in attending meetings convened by the Authority should be 
made to the appropriate County Council Department; the Democratic Support 
Unit can advise on this point. 

(a) RECOVERY OF VAT ON SOME COUNTY COUNCILLORS’ EXPENSES 

HM Revenue & Customs have advised us that the VAT element of some types of
County Councillors’ expenses can now be recovered by the County Council. VAT can
be reclaimed where the full cost of expenses are being reimbursed.

The following is a list of the most likely types of expenses where VAT could be
reclaimed:

 Hotel accommodation and sundries;
 Full cost of meals, e.g. on trains;
 Car parking and tolls;
 Taxi fares (if driver is VAT registered).

To enable the County Council to recover the VAT, please obtain a VAT receipt/invoice,
either made out to GCC or in your name and attach it to your monthly expenses claim
form.

(b) INCOME TAX 

At the end of the tax year, the Director: Strategic Finance has to notify the Inspector of
Taxes of the amounts paid during the tax year and a form P60 will be issued to each
Member showing details of the information given to the Inspector.  When a Member
ceases to hold office, a form P45 is issued to the Member, a copy of which is sent to
the Inspector.

As part of the Self Assessment arrangements for income tax the Inland Revenue do
expect individuals to keep records of pay/allowances received and receipts for
expenses, which should be obtained wherever possible.

(c) NATIONAL INSURANCE CONTRIBUTIONS 

1. Irrespective of any involvement in other employment or office, contributions will be
payable at the appropriate current rate.

2. Contributions are to be calculated by reference to the total gross earnings used for tax
purposes paid in each pay period, irrespective of the period in which they are earned or
relate.  The pay period for this purpose will be one calendar month.

3. The essential feature in accounting for National Insurance contributions (and PAYE) is
the National Insurance number.  Would new Members please therefore include their
number with their first claim?

Page 16



Issue No.26 –July 2016
P a g e  | 222

4. Members that are over State Pension age, currently 60 for women and 65 for men, do
not have to pay employee’s contributions. In order for the County Council not to deduct 
National Insurance, from the Members Allowance, the Member must provide a
Certificate of Age Exception. This certificate can be obtained by applying to the
National Insurance Contributions Office, a department of HM Revenue & Customs. 

5. At the end of the tax year the Director: Strategic Finance has to notify HM Revenue &
Customs of the amounts of National Insurance deducted during the year. This will be
reported along with the income tax deducted (see 4b above). It will also be included on
form P60, with the deductions of tax that will be issued to each Member. 

(d) SOCIAL SECURITY BENEFITS 

H M Revenue & Customs will regard "Member allowances" as a gain from employment.
It is important, therefore, that a Member in receipt of any State Benefits (e.g. Job
Seekers Allowance or Disability Working Allowance) should inform the payer of the
benefits irrespective of whether or not he or she claims the allowances payable by the
County Council.

The Department of the Environment has issued guidance on County Councillors'
allowances, tax and Social Security benefits.  For further information please contact the
Payments and Income Section (01452) 425940.

5. RENUNCIATION AND WITHHOLDING ALLOWANCES 

5.1 A Member who is a County Councillor may by notice in writing to the Director: Strategic
Finance elect to forego all or any part of his or her entitlement to a basic or special
responsibility allowance.

The election may be for an amount, which the Member can then require to be paid to a
charity (or charities) under the "give as you earn" scheme. There is now no maximum
limit which can be paid to charity.

6. FINANCIAL LOSS ALLOWANCE AND NON-ELECTED MEMBERS OF COMMITTEES
AND SUB-COMMITTEES 

Non-elected persons serving on any body of the County Council may claim a
financial loss allowance when, as a result of performing any approved duty set out in Annex 1,
they suffer:

 Loss of earnings or benefit under the National Insurance Act 1965 which she/he would
otherwise have suffered; or
 Additional expense (other than expense in respect of travelling or subsistence) to which
she/he would not otherwise have been subject.

The amount of the allowance, in respect of any one period of twenty four hours, is the
actual loss incurred, not exceeding:

 When the period of time during which earnings are lost or additional expense incurred is not
more than four hours, the sum of £27.65.

Page 17



Issue No.26 –July 2016
P a g e  | 223

 When the period of time involved is more than four hours the sum of £55.31.

7. ALLOWANCES FOR NON-ELECTED REIMBURSING EXPENSES FOR NON-COUNTY 
COUNCILLORS 

Non-elected representatives who are co-opted onto Council committees may claim
travel subsistence and carers’ allowances in the same way as elected members of the 
County Council.  This includes but is not restricted to members of the Independent
Remuneration Panel (IRP), the Gloucestershire Police and Crime Panel and
Independent Persons (Standards).

In light of the time commitment required of members of the IRP, the following
payments will be made on an annual basis:
Chair of the IRP - £1,000
Members of the IRP - £250

Arising from the review of the decision making process and the Council's
decision to involve "other" people in policy formulation and performance
review, the Council has agreed to reimburse the expenses incurred by
non-County Councillors in attending meetings.

The basic framework within which this policy operates is as follows: 

 The Council will meet the out-of-pocket expenses incurred by those 
individuals invited to attend and participate in meetings convened by the 
Authority; 

 These expenses will relate to travelling, subsistence and caring (e.g. 
child-minding and home care support) costs - Please Note, the rules for 
claiming the cost of carers for Non County Councillors will be the same as 
those applying to County Councillors, (see Section 4(c) of this guide); 

 These expenses are met from within individual departmental budgets; 

 Claims/payments are administered by individual departments (as 
appropriate) in accordance with these general principles; 

 Individuals will be paid at the same rate per mile for using their own motor 
vehicle within the County as County Councillors (or the cost involved in 
using public transport); 

 Where deemed appropriate a subsistence payment of £2.50 may be 
made in respect of meetings exceeding four hours and the duty is more 
than three miles from their home; 

 Where appropriate caring and travel expenses may be reimbursed, based on the actual 
costs incurred (up to a maximum of £25.00 a day for caring costs) and on 
production of appropriate receipts or other evidence of expenditure, (also 
see Section 3(c) of this guide). 

This scheme applies where no other arrangements have been made, but any other
scheme must not exceed the rates applying to County Councillors.

8. FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT POINTS 

Please contact Democratic Services at Shire Hall.

Page 18



Issue No.26 –July 2016
P a g e  | 224

 General queries regarding claims' procedures, Payments and Income
Section (01452) 425712;

 Income Tax, National Insurance, Social Security, etc, Payroll Services
(01452) 425909;

 Queries regarding “approved duties”, Democratic Services (01452)
425011;

 Rail tickets, Democratic Services (01452) 425479/426946.

Page 19



Issue No.26 –July 2016
P a g e  | 225

APPROVED DUTIES FOR THE PURPOSE OF THE PAYMENT OF TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE 
ALLOWANCES UNDER REGULATION 8 OF THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES (MEMBERS' 
ALLOWANCES) (ENGLAND) REGULATIONS 2003

Attendance at meetings (including Committees and Sub-Committees) of the following 
outside bodies to which the Member has been appointed by the Council: 

Berkeley and Oldbury Nuclear Power Station Local Community Liaison Committee 
Cotswold Canals Project Board 
Cotswold Water Park Joint Committee 
County Council Network (CCN) 
Cross Boundary Issues Member Group 
Gloucestershire Airport Consultative Committee 
Gloscat Board of Governors 
Gloucestershire Everyman Theatre Company 
Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Council of Governors 
Gloucestershire Local Access Forum 
Gloucestershire Police Authority 
GlosREC 
Gloucestershire Rural Community Council 
Gloucester United Schools 
Hester’s Way Partnership 
Local Government Association (General Assembly) 
Wessex Regional Flood and Coastal Committee 
Road Safety Liaison Groups 
Severn Estuary Partnership 
South West Councils 
Standing Advisory Committee on Religious Education (SACRE) 

Note:South West Regional Assembly and Local Government Association committee 
membership (whether or not appointed by the Council or Cabinet), through “top up” 
arrangements may also give rise to entitlement to travel and subsistence allowances 

Attendance at meetings (including Committees and Sub-Committees) of the following 
outside bodies to which the Member has been appointed by the Cabinet: 

2gether NHS Foundation Trust 
Children & Young People’s Strategic Partnership 
Coalfield Regeneration Board 
Cotswold Conservation Board 
Cotswold & Forest of Dean Destination Management Organisation Board 
Crime and Disorder District Partnerships 
Furniture Recycling Project (Gloucester) 
Gloucester Food Links Limited 
Gloucester Urban Regeneration Company Board 
Gloucestershire Electronic Partnership 
Gloucestershire Environment Partnership 
Gloucestershire First 
Glos Infrastructure Group (FOLDA) 
Gloucestershire Health and Community Wellbeing Partnership 

Page 20



Issue No.26 –July 2016
P a g e  | 226

Gloucestershire Learning Partnership 
Gloucestershire LGA 
Gloucestershire Playing Fields Association 
Gloucestershire Safe and Stronger Communities Partnership 
Gloucestershire Strategic Partnership & Accountable Body Group 
Joint Improvement Board 
Local Access Forum 
LGA Fire Service Forum 
LGA (Rural Commission) 
LGA (Urban Commission) 
Local Government Flood Forum 
Local Strategic Partnerships 
South West Provincial Council 
South West Regional Coordination of Trading Standards 
South West Regional Executive Board Asylum Seekers/Refugees 
South West Tourism 
South West UK Brussels Office Management Board 
Supporting People Partnership Board under Cabinet 
The Sedbury Trust 
Traffic Penalty Tribunal 
University of Gloucestershire 
Victoria County History Board 
Wessex Reserve Forces & Cadets Association 

Further duties may be approved by the Chief Executive (acting under delegated 
powers) but to claim travelling and subsistence the duty must have been approved in 
advance of the duty being performed. 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE

10 October 2016

Revisions to the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Terms of Reference

1 Introduction

The Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) was established in shadow form in 2011.  At 
that time there was a clear national steer that HWBs should have a commissioning 
focus.  In light of this the Gloucestershire HWB structure included only 
representatives from commissioning organisations.

In order to ensure the input from provider organisations into the work of the Board a 
Provider Forum was established in 2014.  The GHWB Provider Forum was set up by 
the Board to enable VCS and other providers of health and social care services to 
better engage with the changing health agenda and the Board, as well as other 
relevant decision making structures. The Forum meets three times a year and aims 
to better connect providers to each other, as well as relevant partners, statutory 
bodies and commissioners

However it has now been five years since the HWB was created and it is timely to 
consider whether the current structure remains fit for purpose.  There are a number 
of drivers for this, firstly the letter from Jeremy Hunt in 2014 requesting that HWB’s 
establish a formal mechanism for engaging providers in the work of the HWB.  The 
local response at the time was to create the Provider Forum.

Secondly the requirement in the NHS Five Year Forward View for the development 
of Sustainability and Transformation Plans (STPs).  This will be the means by which 
health and social care integration will be driven forward within the County.  The STP 
has a clear focus on the prevention agenda and a Prevention and Self-Care plan has 
been drafted as part of the STP development process.  A governance structure has 
been created to oversee the STP that includes Chairs and senior staff of health and 
social care commissioning and provider organisations to oversee this task but there 
are clear links with the work of the HWB.  

Lastly there are emerging new models of health and social care integration that can 
provide some helpful learning.  For example Plymouth has adopted an integrated 
system for health and wellbeing based on one system and one budget.

2 Revisions

In light of the drivers outlined above this paper makes the following proposals: 

 To extend the membership of the HWB to include the Chairs of the three main 
health provider organisations associated with the STP

 Invite the Chief Constable to join the HWB
 To change the voting rights of some member organisations.  This will mean 

the local health sector will now have one vote between them
 Amend the terms of reference to incorporate the learning from Plymouth “One 

System, One Budget” model and move the HWB to become a system leader 
for health, wellbeing and prevention

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



The suggested amendments are highlighted in yellow to the original terms of 
reference in Appendix A.  

3 Recommendation

The amendments to the Constitution set out in Appendix A are approved and 
recommended to full Council for adoption.  

Sarah Scott
Director of Public Health
Tel 01452 328497
Email Sarah.L.Scott@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

Page 24

mailto:Sarah.L.Scott@gloucestershire.gov.uk


GHWB Terms of Reference
In accordance with the requirements of the Health & Social Care Act 2012 (“the Act”) 
the Council has established the Health and Wellbeing Board as a committee of the 
Council. Its duties/terms of reference are:

1. For the purpose of advancing the health and wellbeing of the people of 
Gloucestershire to encourage persons who arrange for the provision or 
delivery of any health or social care services in the county to work in an 
integrated manner

2. To encourage persons who arrange for the provision of any health or social 
care services in the county and persons who arrange for the provision or 
delivery of any health-related services in the county to work closely together.

3. Pursuant to section 116 of the Local government and Public Involvement in 
Health Act 2007 to prepare and publish a joint strategic needs assessment for 
the county

4. To prepare and publish a strategy for meeting the needs identified in the joint 
strategic needs assessment and ensuring a strategic planning framework is in 
place

5. To provide such advice, assistance or other support as it thinks appropriate for 
the purpose of encouraging the making of arrangements under section 75 of 
the National Health Service Act 2006 in connection with the provision of such 
services

6. To encourage persons who arrange for the provision or delivery of any health-
related services in the county to work closely with the Board

Membership of the Health and Wellbeing Board comprises:

 Chair of Clinical Commissioning Gloucestershire
 Additional Clinical Commissioning Gloucestershire member
 Accountable Officer of Clinical Commissioning Gloucestershire 
 A District Council elected representative from Leadership Gloucestershire
 County Council Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing, Gloucestershire 

County Council (or equivalent)
 County Council Cabinet Member for Vulnerable Families, Gloucestershire 

County Council (or equivalent)
 County Council Liberal Democratic Spokesperson for Public Health and 

Communities
 County Council Labour Spokesperson for Public Health and Communities
 The Director of Adult Social Services, Gloucestershire County Council
 The Director of Children’s Services, Gloucestershire County Council
 Police and Crime Commissioner
 The Director of Public Health, Gloucestershire County Council

Appendix A

Page 25



 A representative of the local HealthWatch 
 A representative of the NHS Commissioning Board  Local Area Team
 A District Council Chief Officer and link for housing related business
 Chair of Gloucestershire Care Services NHS Trust
 Chair of 2gether NHS Foundation trust
 Chair of Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
 Chief Constable of Gloucestershire

Note 1: Political proportionality will not be applied

Note 2:  Voting – Individual members of the Board shall be non-voting. Instead each 
member organisation or group of organisations will have one vote. The nominee of 
each organisation must be present to vote.  There will be no absence voting 
provision. The Chair will have the casting vote on behalf of his or her organisation.

Voting organisations are:

 Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group, Gloucestershire Care 
Services NHS Trust, Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundations Trust and 
2gether NHS Foundation Trust

 Gloucestershire County Council
 HealthWatch
 District Councils (one vote for all six)
 NHS England
 PCC and Gloucestershire Constabulary

Note 3:  For the purpose of enabling it to carry out its functions the Health and 
Wellbeing Board may request the Council, the Local Healthwatch, the Clinical 
Commissioning Group or other member of the Board to supply it with information 
specified in the request.

Note 4: Terms of Office – Each term of office will run for the term of the County 
Council unless a member organisation advises otherwise. 

Note 5: Substitutions: There will be no substitutions, if an organisation is unable to 
send its representative a named substitute may be nominated for that meeting only.   
Notice of this shall be given by the absent Board member to the committee 
administrator in advance of the meeting.  Ideally a weeks’ notice shall be given to 
allow all Board members to be advised of the substitution. Procedural Standing 
Order 4 shall not apply.

Note 6: Quorum: The quorum for meetings of the Health and Wellbeing Board is that 
one quarter of the membership be present and at least 5 be voting member 
organisations.

Page 26



Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Members' Allowances Scheme
	1Report - revisions to the Members' Allowances Scheme
	Allowances changes Aug 2016 APPENDIX A
	Allowances changes Aug 2016 APPENDIX B

	7 Health and Wellbeing Board - Proposed Changes to Terms of Reference
	8 Monitoring Officer Changes to the Constitution
	Employee Code of Conduct September 2016
	MO Change Oct 2016




